SECTION B PAGE SIX

Congs_re'ga’ri;onal Parish
Here Observing lts 146th
Year Of Service In 1957

The First Congregational Church of Houlton dates its
history as far back as four years. after the founding of the

plantation of Houlton in 1807,

It is, in this Sesquicenten-

nial year of the town, cbserving the 146th year of its ser-
vice to a congregation which first numbered seven males
and nine females when it gathered to worship on the Sab-
bath Day of October 13, 1811.

The early history of Houlton, as written by Joshua
Kendall, explains the inspiration which led to the estab-
lishment of this church as the few early settlers, then so

far away from their home church in New Salem,

Mass.

felt the need for the,guidance and comfort of divine wor-

ship in their remote SItuatlon

SMALL GROUP ORGANIZES

Accordmgly, so it is written, a
small group held a meeting on
October 10, 1811 for the purpose of
organizing themselves into a church
group and mutually subscribed to
a covenant and eight articles of
faith.

‘The prelude read: “We, the in-
habitants of the Plantation of Houl-

ton, being mem.b'ers of the Church
of Christ of New Salem, Mass., con-
sidering that God in- His provi-
dence hath removed us from the
stated means of grace, and cast our
lot together in this wilderness,
where we hope again to enjoy the
smile of His countenance and His
presence, do unitedly agree to em-

body ourselves with such as may
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) the Church, while he dwelt among

God to be our God, who hast re-

Saviour, the Holy Spirit of God to

be pleased to unite with us and do
hereby bind ourselves in the fol-.
lowing articles of faith”.

EIGHT ARTICLES OF FAITH

‘The eight articles to which this
small group subscribed were: (1)
We do believe that there is one

god, who created all things and®
who governs and preserves the
sane.

(2) We believe in one God, the
Father, and the Son, and the Holy
Ghost, and these three are united
in God. |

(3) We believe in Christ as the
only son of God, only Saviour and
Redeemer of this sinful, dying
world.

(4) We believe in the Holy Scrip-

tures, that they are the Word of
God, wisely and mercifully design-
ed. by Him to instruct mankind in
luty, and lead him into all truth.
7 (5)- We believe it was appointed
of God for all men once to die; and
after death the Judgement by
Jesus Christ. _

(6) We believe in the immortal-
ity of the Soul and in the glorious
resurrection of Jesus Christ.

(7) We believe in the solemn
ordinances of the Gospel — Bap-
tism and. the Lord’s Supper, and
that these are sacred institutions
appointed by the great Head of

men, and 'to be observed by all His
humble followers, until time shall
be no more.

(8) We believe it is the duty of
all believers to profess Christ open-
Iy, not only in joining themselves !
to the visible church, but to give |
up their children in solemn cov-.
enant of .Baptism.

THE COVENANT

Then came the covenant.
“We then, in the presence of
God, angels and men, take this one

vedled *Himself to us in the work
of nature and in His own Word,
and we do hereby accept and ac-
krnowledge Jesus Christ as our only

be the comforter of our spirits and
the Sanctifier of our Souls.

“We engage to take the Holy
Scripture to be our guide, the man
to our counsel to direct us into all
duty. .

“We promise to walk in all the
ordinances of the Gospel from time
to time as far from blameless as
God in His grace and Providence
shall give us strength and oppor-
tunity. We promise patiently to
submit ourselves to the discipline
of the Church of '[Christ in this
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ness and prayer, we will. watch
over ourselves, and one another in

the Lord. This we profess and
promise”.

To thesd articles of faith and
covenant, the following names

were affixed: Males; Samuel Ken-
dall, Deacon; Joseph Putnam, Aar-
on Putnam, Samuel Rice, James
Houlton, Eben Warner and Joshua
Kendall. Females; Betsy Putnam,
Isa Putnam, Betsy Rice, Sally
Cook, Sarah Houlton, Sally Houl-
ton, Polly Houlton, Louisa Houlton,
Hannah Shaw.

FIRST SERMON PREACHED

- Six persons were present at the
first Sabbath meeting who were
members of the visible Church of
Christ of New Salem, Mass. These,
with 12 others who were added to
the membership by subscribing to
the covenant, comprised the first
congregation which met to hear a
sermon ‘Oct. 13, 1811 by Rev. Ed-

nlara and that with mnsh moeoal.
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The Congregationalists of Houlton first attended  ser-
vices in this church in 1879 after it had been removed from
its original location near the intersection of Main and Mili-
tary streets and greatly improved. They continued ‘to wor-
ship here until the fateful Sunday morning of New Year's
Day, 1956, when fire completely destroyed this edifice. .

Church of Christ in Limerick and
to witness his baptism into the
church of one adult, Hannah Shaw,
and two children, Putnam Shaw
and J. B. Putnam, after which the
Lord’s Supper was administered
for the first time in Houlton.
The ensuing six years were drab
ones indeed for this tiny congrega-
tion so far removed from their for-
mer homes and many of the rela-
tives of the members. The stay of
Rev. Eastman was a short one and
from his departure until the third
Sunday in€eptember, 1818, the par-
ish was left without a pastor and
without preaching of any kind.

HELD FIRMLY TOGETHER

But the little band held firmly
together during this long period of
being without the guidance of their
own minister. In this they were
helped greatly by the Mother
church in New Salem with whom
a - constant correspondence was

maintainad Ravwvr Alnhane Wardino

|was

was the pastor of that church with
whom Deacon 'Samuel Kendall kept
in touch and it was through his
efforts that the second preacher

| 'made his way over the long trail

that led frem Massachusetts. to
Houlton.

Rev. Seth E. Winslow was sent
here by the Evangelical Miséionary
Society of Massachusetts, from
Barre, Mass. and he preached his
first sermoh here September 20,
1818. On that day he received one
person into the church and bap-
tized a number of childpn.

A little more than a month later,
on November 1, the parish extend-

ed a call to Rev. Winslow to accept

the pastorate of the church at a
salary of $400 a year. This offer
declined and, toward the end
of that month he left here on his
return to Massachusetts.

" MET IN HOULTON’S HOME-.

During ‘the brief tenure of Rev.
Winslow, the people met for their
worship in a hall in the residence
of Joseph Houlton which was de-
scribed as being “large enough to
accommodate the inhabitantg of
Houlton and their neighbors from
the Province of New Brunswick.”

In these gquarters the church
members continued to foregather
on each Sabbath even though they
had no minister. The correspond-
ence with Rev. Harding continued

and the historians of that day
agree that the church in far away
IMassachusetts never lost sight of
,the small flock in remote Northern
Maine. But many more years were

Tto elapse bhefore another minister

of the Gospel Would conduct ser-
vices here on & regular basis.
Proof of the bond between New
Salem and Houlton is proved by a
generous action of the New Salem
church in sending to Houlton two
of their precious Communion tank-
ards for the use of the struggling
pioneer church so far away.

COMMUNION TANKARDS

In his letter apprising the Houl-
ton Congregationalists of this gift,
Rev. Harding reported that, “We
shall send by Amos Putnam fwo of
the tankards which we use in com-
memorating the sufferings and
death of our Redeemer, in this
place. We give these as a pledge
that we are still mindful of you,
though far separated from us, and
though they are of little pecuniary
value, yet being the vessels we had
so often used on this solemn occa-
sion . . . we trust you will receive
them as the strong pledge of con-
tinued love . ... ”
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by the church. After they were re-
placed later with others, the
ancient tankards were deposited in
the vault of the Houlton 'Savings
Bank where they have since re-
mained. The church plans to ex-
hibit them during ‘Sesquicentennial
week and they will be on display
in the window of the bank.

In the meantime the pulpit was
filled occasionaily by an itinerant
pastor. In the summer of 1822 the
hopes of the congregation to have
their own minister were aroused
briefly with the visit here of Rev.
Howden, a Scotch Presbyterian,
from New Brunswick, who preach-
ed several Sabbaths. The people of
the church were interested in
having him remain. They consid-
ered the idea of putting up a house
for him ‘but sober thought brought
the realization the expense of .fin-
ishing the home and raising a com-
petent salary was out of their
reach. Reluctantly, it is certain,
they abandoned the project and:

started to be appropriated for a
school ‘house.

HAPHAZARD METHOD

And so the haphazard method of
worship was resumed with only the
exception of “the visits of other
itinerant preachers. This was con-
tinued until 1826 when, through
the efforts of the Maine Mission-
ary Society,/Rev. Samuel B. White-
hall of Norridgewock was sent on

12 mission to Houlton. He was to
iremain here for onlv three months.
‘Six years later, in 1832, he return-
ed again for another stay of three
months duration. .

In the nieantime, however -the
Maine Missionary Society, still
concerned with the welfare of this
renmiote parish, commissioned Rev.
Joseph B. Stevens to come to Houl-
ton. Tt is noted that he reorganized |
the church on January 24, 1833, an
action that was carried out be-
cause the records of the church as
it was established in 1811, had
been destroyed by fire. Only 14
people were members of the re-
constituted organization. Rev. Stev-
ens left Houlton in the fall of that
year.

"MISSIONARY PASTORS SERVE

Over the next half a dgzen years
the First Congregational Church of
Houlton was served only by mis-
sionary wpastors working in this
section of Maine through the of-
fices of the Maine Missionary So-
ciety.

Rev. Joseph N. Munsell was here

in 1833 and was not heard in Houl-
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parmitted the framework they had )|

.1school house on the hill.

CENTENNIAL EDITION

Nathan B.
in the field from Bangor:
Aroostook, was an occasional sup-
ply pastor. In 1835 it was Rev.
John Ballard, under the same aus-
pices, who was here for four
months. Rev. Jonathan Sewall

Shields, whe was work-

ing to

fmade an appearance here for three

months in 1836.

In the year 1835 when a theologi-
cal controversy raged among New
England Congregationalists, the
Houlton church saw the establish-
ment of two separe}te societies, one
dedicated to orthodox. Congrega-
tionalism, the other svm‘pathetic to
Unitarianism. The history of the
local church reports that the latter
erected the first church huilding
in 1837; the former dedicated their
new meeting house ‘in 1839.

Qddly enough, it was the circum-
stance of a war, although a “blocd-
less” one, that was to crystallize
the sentiment among Congregation-
alists in Houlton to have their own
church edifice.

In mid-December of 1837, Rev.
Charles Beaman of Ipswich, Mass.
arrived in Houlton and preached
his first sermon here on Sunday,
the 17th. His coming was the re-
sult of a petition by Dr. Lyman
Sprague, a surgeon in the TUnited
States Army, then stationed at
Hancnck Barracks in Houlton, that
Rev. Beaman be transferred from
his religious work at Andover Sem-
inary in Massachusetts, to Houlton,
Maine.

MILITARY-CIVILIAN

He had a full congregation at his

first service, which was held in the
The his-
torian of that era desecribed the
service as presenting “a novel ap-
pearance with officers and soldiers
in uniform, and ladies of the garri-
son, mingled with merchants and
citizens, to all of whom this ser-
vice was wonderfully blessed.”
" Harly in the next year the move-
ment for a church was begun. On
January 4 a church conference and
prayer was held at the home of
Samuel Houlton. Rev. Beaman ‘pre-
sided and while it is reported the
“time was occupied by prayers,
exhortations, and by hymns of
praise”, there can be little doubt
that the subject of a new church
that was now uppermost in the
minds of all of the parish, was dis-
cussed.

At this meeting it was agreed
that Saturday, January 10th should
be set apart as a day of fasting
and prayer for the revival of God’s
work in Houlton, and this observ-
ance was carried out.
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